
Housing Authority of Winston-Salem 
Development Committee Meeting 

May 7, 2024 

10:00 a.m. 

LOCATION: ELECTRONIC 

Development Committee Members: 
Committee Chair Art Gibel 

Commissioner Alfred Adams 
Commissioner Felicia Brinson 

Commissioner Andrew Perkins 
Commissioner Betsy Annese 

1



 
    

 

Development Committee Meeting                 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Review and Approval of Agenda (May 7, 2024)       

4. Review and Approval of Summary Minutes (April 2, 2024) 

5. Management Reports 

• Executive Director Report 
• Choice Neighborhood Report 

6. Resolutions 

None 

7. Committee Comments 

8. Adjournment 
Upon motion and second; no vote required in absence of objection.

 
 

2



 
 4/2/2024 Summary Minutes 

 

Development Committee Meeting                 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 

                                                                           

Present via Zoom:      Absent: 
Committee Chair Art Gibel     Commissioner Andrew Perkins   
Commissioner Betsy Annese 
Commissioner Alfred Adams 
Commissioner Felicia Brinson 
 
Staff Presenting: 
Kevin Cheshire, Executive Director 
Katya Urraco, Director of Strategic Initiatives 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

Committee Chair Gibel called the Development Committee Meeting to order at 10:00 
a.m.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 

Roll call was taken and there was a quorum. 
 
3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Consideration to approve Agenda (April 2, 2024) 
Motion: Commissioner Adams 
Second: Commissioner Annese 

Unanimous approval; no discussion 

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Consideration to approve Summary Minutes (March 5, 2024) 
Motion: Commissioner Annese 
Second: Commissioner Adams 

Unanimous approval; no discussion  

5. MANAGEMENT REPORTS 

Executive Director Report (Kevin Cheshire) 
Development Report: 

Kevin Cheshire went over the written Development Report contained in the Development 
Committee packet.  
 
Announcements:  

 
 

3



 
 4/2/2024 Summary Minutes 

 

Development Committee Meeting                 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 

• The HCV Wait List opened up this moning at 9:00 a.m. and will remain open 
until close of business on Thursday.  

o Committee Chair Gibel commented that he saw the announcement 
regarding the Wait List opening on WXII evening news and was very 
pleased it received the needed attention. Mr. Cheshire provided that ABC 
45 interviewed him as well.  

• Received notice of our first NSPIRE (new protocal HUD is using to replace 
REAC) inspection at Brookside View. NSPIRE inspections focus primarily on the 
interior of the units verses the exterior/common areas site conditions. HAWS 
receives a thirty (30) day notice before each scheduled inspection.  

o Committee Chair Gibel if all units are inspected and Mr. Cheshire 
provided they take a random sampling of units.  

• Sunrise and Crystal Towers had both elevators out of service over the Easter 
weekend; however, the vendors were on top of it and they were only out a couple 
of hours.  
 

Highlights:  
 

• The March DOL inspection of Car 1 at Crystal failed, due to a counterweight 
issue that ensures proper traction and balancing. The issue is corrected and 
another DOL inspection has been scheduled with a “pass” anticipated.  

• David Snider will present a Capital report next week at the full Board meeting 
outlining a summary of capital projects that have been completed.   

• Phase I of Lansing Ridge is underway and making good progress. An MBE 
development partner is building out that community.   

• The Salem Gardens bond deal is schedule to close this month.  
• The King Building renovation is currently in the rough-in stage and they are 

getting ready to close up the walls. The data lines installation was excluded from 
the original scope and is currently being added and an installer will be on site to 
install prior to the walls being closed.   

 
Choice Neighborhood Report (Katya Urraco) 

Katya Urraco went over the written CNI Report contained in the Development 
Committee packet. 

  
Highlights: 

• The timeline has been updated and everything shown is current year highlights 
and everything planned for this year.  

 
 

4



 
 4/2/2024 Summary Minutes 

 

Development Committee Meeting                 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 

• Buildings 1 through 10 have been released for occupancy at Brown School Lofts. 
Buildings 11 and 12 have finish work underway with April occupancy expected. 
The Grand Opening will be held April 25 @ 3:00 p.m. 

• Phase II/III: revised budget submitted to HUD; all units have been vacated and 
utilities are being disconnected in anticipation of demolition. The Additional 
Services Agreement is an action item on the Agenda and once approved by the 
Board and then the City, demolition will begin. Frank Blum Construction is on 
site and have us on their schedule and are awaiting the greenlight from HAWS, 
HUD and the City.  

• Ms. Mattie moved from Cleveland Avenue Homes to her new unit at the Brown 
School Lofts. She was extremely happy and the event was reported by the 
Winston Salem Journal. Her grandkids were there to celebrate with her.  

o Committee Chair Gibel inquired as to the whether the remaining CAH had 
been relocated and Ms. Urraco confirmed that yes, everyone has moved 
out.  

• Kevin Cheshire added that HAWS is going before the City next week and part of 
the discussion will be the existing funding gap for Phase II/III of approximately 
$7 million. We have sufficient funding to go ahead with demolition, so this will 
not be delayed. There could be media coverage.   

 
6. RESOUTIONS 

• Resolution No. 2243 – Resolution Authorizing Additional Services Agreement 
(Choice Neighborhoods Phase II/III) 

Motion: Commissioner Brinson 
Second: Commissioner Annese 

Unanimous. 
 

(Cheshire) Additional Services Agreement (“ASA”) allows McCormack Barron to start 
the demolition process, site preparation, road infrastructure, curbs and gutters, etc. The 
ASA has been modified to incorporate Phase II/III and the attached budget has been 
modified as well.  This resolution authorizes me to execute the ASA. 
 

7. COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT  

Committee Chair Gibel declared the meeting adjourned at 10:33 a.m. 
 

 
 

5



 
 4/2/2024 Summary Minutes 

 

Development Committee Meeting                 
May 7, 2024 
10:00A.M. 

 

 
Acknowledgement and Adoption of the April 2, 2024 Development Committee Minutes. 

 
 
 
                                      Date Adopted 
 
 
                                      Kevin Cheshire, Board Secretary 

 
 

6



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
1:

  C
ry

st
al

 T
ow

er
s

O
VE

RV
IE

W
•D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Co
re

 L
oc

at
io

n
•2

01
 U

ni
ts

 (E
ld

er
ly

/D
isa

bl
ed

)
•I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 L

iv
in

g
O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

S
•A

dd
re

ss
 Im

m
ed

ia
te

 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

N
ee

ds
 

•E
ns

ur
e 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 
 

7



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
1:

  C
ry

st
al

 T
ow

er
s

EL
EV

AT
O

R 
ST

AT
U

S
•K

on
e

M
od

er
ni

za
tio

n 
•1

st
Ca

r
•

In
 S

er
vi

ce
 (A

pr
il)

•
O

ne
 C

al
l O

ut
 (T

en
an

t D
am

ag
e)

•2
nd

Ca
r 

•
10

-1
2 

W
ee

k 
Es

tim
at

e
•

St
ar

t D
ay

 M
id

-M
ay

•
En

su
rin

g 
N

o 
Is

su
es

 w
ith

 C
ar

 1

 
 

8



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
1:

  C
ry

st
al

 T
ow

er
s

AS
SE

SM
EN

T 
ST

AT
U

S
•M

et
 w

ith
 C

ity
•H

U
D 

O
n-

Si
te

 V
isi

t
•S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 G

ra
nt

•R
FP

 Is
su

ed
 

•
Re

sid
en

t P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
•

As
se

ss
m

en
t

•
Re

nd
er

in
gs

•
Sc

op
e

•
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

 
 

9



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
2:

  H
ap

py
 H

ill

O
VE

RV
IE

W
•

Do
w

nt
ow

n-
Ad

ja
ce

nt
 L

oc
at

io
n

•
Hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 a

nd
 C

ul
tu

ra
lly

 S
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

Si
te

•
Fo

rm
er

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
sin

g 
Co

m
m

un
ity

•
Ra

ze
d 

an
d 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 
20

03
 H

O
PE

 V
I G

ra
nt

•
~ 

20
 A

cr
es

 o
f U

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 L

an
d

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
S

•
Cr

ea
te

 M
ix

ed
-In

co
m

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

•
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 M
ar

ke
t R

at
e

•
Re

nt
al

 a
nd

 H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p

 
 

10



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
2:

  H
ap

py
 H

ill

HA
BI

TA
T 

ST
AT

U
S 

(P
HA

SE
 1

)
•I

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
•B

ui
ld

er
s B

lit
z 

•M
ay

 1
8 

De
di

ca
tio

n
•L

eg
ac

y 
Fa

m
ily

 D
at

ab
as

e 
&

 
Pr

io
rit

y

 
 

11



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
2:

  H
ap

py
 H

ill

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Lo

ts
 (P

HA
SE

 2
)

•D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ar

tn
er

s
•

Tr
ue

 H
om

es
•

Pr
os

pe
rit

y 
Al

lia
nc

e
•

Ha
pp

y 
Hi

ll 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

As
so

ci
at

io
n

•P
en

di
ng

•
Le

ga
cy

 C
CR

s
•

Si
te

 P
la

n 
(~

70
 U

ni
ts

 P
ro

po
se

d)
•

U
ni

t M
ix

•
Sc

he
du

le

 
 

12



De
ve

lo
pm

en
t P

rio
rit

y 
2:

  H
ap

py
 H

ill

(S
U

BS
EQ

U
EN

T 
PH

AS
ES

)
•

Li
be

ria
n 

O
rg

an
iza

tio
n 

of
 P

ie
dm

on
t

•
Tr

an
sf

er
 la

nd
 fo

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ud
en

t h
ou

sin
g

•
Ha

pp
y 

Hi
ll 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
As

so
ci

at
io

n
•

Tr
an

sf
er

 la
nd

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
•

HU
D-

Re
st

ric
te

d 
Pa

rc
el

s
•

W
ill

 b
e 

re
le

as
ed

 o
nc

e 
13

 H
ab

ita
t 

ho
m

es
 c

om
pl

et
ed

•
As

se
ss

 n
ee

d 
at

 th
at

 ti
m

e 
to

 
d e

te
rm

in
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n

 
 

13



O
TH

ER
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PR
O

JE
CT

S
(E

xc
lu

siv
e 

of
 C

N
I)

•L
an

sin
g 

Ri
dg

e
•

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 P
riv

at
e 

De
ve

lo
pe

r
•

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

(N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n)
•

Ph
as

e 
1 

(o
f 3

) N
ea

rin
g 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

(8
 H

om
es

)
•

Ph
as

e 
2 

Su
m

m
er

 2
02

4
•S

al
em

 G
ar

de
ns

•
Cl

os
ed

 B
on

d 
fo

r A
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

an
d 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n
•

N
ew

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
•2

 P
en

di
ng

 B
on

d/
PB

V 
N

ew
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

•K
in

g 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Re

de
sig

n 
an

d 
Re

no
va

tio
n

•
Tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

n 
Sc

he
du

le

 
 

14



Choice Neighborhood Initiative Summary - April 2024

Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul 24 Aug 24 Sept 24 Oct 24 Nov 24 Dec 24

Phase I: The Lofts at Brown School – Multi-Family (81 Units)

Occupancy 
Begins

Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul 24 Aug 24  Sept 24  Oct 24 Nov 24 Dec 24

Relocation Information  
Group I  

Total Units:  111

Households Relocated/Pending: 111

Households Remaining:  0

Households Seeking Housing:  0

Other (USI Offices): 0

As of February 2024, we are 44 months into our 72 month CNI project effort

Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24  May 24 Jun 24 Jul 24 Aug 24 Sept 24 Oct 24  Nov 24 Dec 24

Phase II/III:  Cleveland Avenue Site – Multi-Family (120 Units)

Phase IV: Cleveland Avenue Site – Multi-Family (60 Units) 

Housing Plan

Phase I: Building 1 – 12 Complete.  Released for Occupancy. 

Phase I: Leasing Underway; Residents Locating to Site.  

Phase II – III: Budget Revision Submitted and Waiting on Approval.

Phase II – III: Demolition Application Approved by HUD.

Phase IV: Tax Application in Progress.

Prelim Tax Credit 
App Submitted

Full Tax Credit App
Submitted

Neighborhood Plan  

First Phase of Residential Façade
Improvement Program is underway. 
Home inspections complete.  
Scopes of Work at each home complete. 
Façade Improvement contracts with City 
and Homeowners are executed.
Homes Completed – 12
Homes In Progress – 6 
Homes Finalizing Paperwork - 7

People Plan  

314 Total CAH Families Have Enrolled in 
USI Case Management. 99% of Current 
CAH Families Enrolled in USI Case 
Management.

90% of Target Residents Report Having 
Medicaid Insurance.

78% of children have seen a dentist in 
last 12 months.

48% eligible adults earn wage income.

Section 3 / MWBE  
March  1, 2024 to March 31, 2024:

19 % of Project to MBEs (Target: 25%)
10 % of Project to WBEs (Target: 5%)

8 % of Project to Section 3 Businesses

69% of hours - Sec 3 workers (Trgt: 25%)
72% of Housing Const hours – Sect 3

35% of project workers live in W-S/FC.
1% of project workers – Legacy Hghts S3

Lease‐Up
Complete

Grand Opening 

May 2023

Jan 24 Feb 24  Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul 24 Aug 24 Sept 24  Oct 24 Nov 24 Dec 24 

Phase V: Cleveland Avenue Site – Multi-Family (64 Units) & Senior Bldg (80 Units)  

Phase I Construction Close‐Out

Phase I Operational

TPVs Requested

TPVs Awarded

Site/Unit Plans RefinedTenant Relocation Begins

Oct 2023

Jan  2024

April 2024 – Ribbon Cutting!

Relo CompleteEnviro Begins

Enviro
Complete

Closing 
Prep

HUD SLR
Phase Plan 
Submittal

Dem‐Dis App Submitted

Contractor
Mobilized Dem‐Dis 

App 
Approved

Demo & 
Site Work 
Begins

HUD SLR
Phase Plan 
Approved

Phase II & III
Closing

Demo & Site
Work Complete

Pre‐Closing 
Approvals

 
 

15



H
o
u
si
n
g
 P
la
n

B
u
ild

in
g
s 
1
‐1
2 
–
R
e
le
as
e
d
 f
o
r 
O
cc
u
p
an

cy
 

1
2

3

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 T
RA

N
SF
O
RM

AT
IO
N
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
Br
ow

n 
Sc
ho

ol
 L
of
ts
 a
t L
eg
ac
y 
He

ig
ht
s!
 

4

5

6

7

8

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

 
 

16



TR
AN

SF
O
RM

AT
IO
N
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
Br
ow

n 
Sc
ho

ol
 L
of
ts
 a
t L
eg
ac
y 
He

ig
ht
s!
 

 
 

17



C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
 T
RA

N
SF
O
RM

AT
IO
N
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
Br
ow

n 
Sc
ho

ol
 L
of
ts
 a
t L
eg
ac
y 
He

ig
ht
s!
 

Ju
ly
 2
0
2
2

N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
0
2
2

M
ay
 2
0
2
3

M
ar
ch
 2
0
2
4

M
ar
ch
 2
0
2
4

C
u
rr
en

t

 
 

18



A
tta

ch
me

nt
 B

 - 
Pr

oje
ct 

Fi
sca

l R
evi

ew

C
ho

ic
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

B
ud

ge
t (

H
U

D
 f

un
ds

 o
nl

y)
R

ep
or

tin
g 

P
er

io
d:

 

P
eo

pl
e

4,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d

4,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
H

ou
si

ng
23

,9
03

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
R

el
oc

at
io

n
59

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

,0
00

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

C
N

I 
B

ud
ge

t &
 E

xp
en

se
s 

by
 A

re
a

P
eo

pl
e 

P
la

n
T

ot
al

 B
ud

ge
t

4,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

2,
20

1,
49

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
2,

29
8,

50
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

49
%

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
P

la
n

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
4,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

E
xp

en
de

d 
to

 D
at

e
80

,8
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
4,

41
9,

12
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

2%

R
el

oc
at

io
n

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
59

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

E
xp

en
de

d 
to

 D
at

e
11

5,
66

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

48
1,

33
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
%

 E
xp

en
de

d
19

%

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n T

ot
al

 B
ud

ge
t

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

75
3,

67
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
74

6,
32

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

50
%

A
pr

il 
20

24

P
eo

pl
e

13
% N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d

13
%

H
ou

si
ng

68
%

R
el

oc
at

io
n

2%

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

4%

C
N

I 
B

ud
ge

t

 -
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 2
,0

00
,0

00
 3

,0
00

,0
00

 4
,0

00
,0

00
 5

,0
00

,0
00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

P
eo

pl
e 

P
la

n 
B

ud
ge

t &
 S

pe
nd

 

 -
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 2
,0

00
,0

00
 3

,0
00

,0
00

 4
,0

00
,0

00
 5

,0
00

,0
00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
P

la
n 

B
ud

ge
t &

 S
pe

nd
 

 -
 2

00
,0

00
 4

00
,0

00
 6

00
,0

00
 8

00
,0

00
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 1
,2

00
,0

00
 1

,4
00

,0
00

 1
,6

00
,0

00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 B
ud

ge
t &

 S
pe

nd
 

 -
 1

00
,0

00
 2

00
,0

00
 3

00
,0

00
 4

00
,0

00
 5

00
,0

00
 6

00
,0

00
 7

00
,0

00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 B
ud

ge
t &

 S
pe

nd
 

 
 

19



A
tta

ch
me

nt
 B

 - 
Pr

oje
ct 

Fi
sca

l R
evi

ew

C
N

I 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

ud
ge

t
R

ep
or

tin
g 

P
er

io
d:

 
A

pr
il 

20
24

F
ee

s 
&

 C
os

ts
:

5,
68

6,
15

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
Si

te
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

:
3,

46
9,

33
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

D
w

el
lin

g 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

:
13

,5
53

,5
09

   
   

   
   

  
D

em
ol

iti
on

:
1,

19
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 23

,9
03

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  

C
N

I 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

ud
ge

t &
 E

xp
en

se
s 

by
 A

re
a

F
ee

s 
an

d 
C

os
ts T

ot
al

 B
ud

ge
t

5,
68

6,
15

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

3,
20

7,
88

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
2,

47
8,

27
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

56
%

Si
te

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
T

ot
al

 B
ud

ge
t

3,
46

9,
33

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

2,
58

2,
70

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
88

6,
62

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

74
%

D
w

el
lin

g 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
13

,5
53

,5
09

   
   

   
   

  
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

2,
43

8,
13

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
11

,1
15

,3
75

   
   

   
   

  
%

 E
xp

en
de

d
18

%

D
em

ol
iti

on
T

ot
al

 B
ud

ge
t

1,
19

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

7,
54

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

t R
em

ai
ni

ng
1,

18
6,

45
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

%
 E

xp
en

de
d

1%

F
ee

s 
&

 C
os

ts
:

24
%

Si
te

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
:

14
%

D
w

el
lin

g 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

:
57

%

D
em

ol
iti

on
:

5%
C

N
I 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
ud

ge
t

 -
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 2
,0

00
,0

00
 3

,0
00

,0
00

 4
,0

00
,0

00
 5

,0
00

,0
00

 6
,0

00
,0

00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ee

s 
an

d 
C

os
ts

 B
ud

ge
t &

 S
pe

nd
 

 -
 5

00
,0

00
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 1
,5

00
,0

00
 2

,0
00

,0
00

 2
,5

00
,0

00
 3

,0
00

,0
00

 3
,5

00
,0

00
 4

,0
00

,0
00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

Si
te

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 B

ud
ge

t &
 S

pe
nd

 

 -
 5

,0
00

,0
00

 1
0,

00
0,

00
0

 1
5,

00
0,

00
0

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

D
w

el
lin

g 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

 B
ud

ge
t &

 S
pe

nd
 

 -
 2

00
,0

00
 4

00
,0

00
 6

00
,0

00
 8

00
,0

00
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 1
,2

00
,0

00
 1

,4
00

,0
00

T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

de
d 

to
 D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t R

em
ai

ni
ng

D
em

ol
iti

on
 B

ud
ge

t &
 S

pe
nd

 

 
 

20



Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I
MBE, WBE, and Section 3 Performance Report

Executive Summary | March 2024

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS 

PROJECT PERFORMANCE 

Business Utilization

19% 
awarded to minority-
owned businesses 

10% 
awarded to women-
owned businesses

8% 
awarded to Section 3 
businesses

The Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I is
currently comprised of three contracts –
Demolition & Site Prep, Housing Construction,
and Public Improvements. The following data
represents project performance against
requirements based on information received
through the report period.

Section 3 Workforce

Labor Hours

69% 
Section 3 Workers

9% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

Project Workforce

The Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I monthly reports document performance against the business utilization
and Section 3 requirements. The following apply to the project:

32% 

of all workers are residents of
Winston-Salem

35% 

of all workers are residents of
Forsyth County

New Hires

72% 
Section 3 Workers

16% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

1% of all workers are residents of Cleveland Avenue
Homes

 
 

21



Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I |  Executive Summary
April 1, 2024 | Page 2

DEMOLITION AND SITE PREPARATION
GENERAL CONTRACTOR
Frank L. Blum Construction Company, Sterling Construction Services, A Joint Venture 

Business Utilization Section 3 Workforce

0 new hires identified. 
0 new hires Section 3 workers. 
0 new hires Targeted Section 3 workers.

Project Notes

No payroll concerns to report.

6% 
awarded to minority-
owned businesses

4% 
awarded to women-owned 
businesses

0% 
awarded to Section 3 
businesses

Labor Hours

9% 
Section 3 Workers

0% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

New Hires

0% 
Section 3 Workers

0% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

 
 

22



HOUSING CONSTRUCTION
GENERAL CONTRACTOR
Frank L. Blum Construction Company, Sterling Construction Services, A Joint Venture 

Business Utilization Section 3 Workforce

87 new hires identified. 
63 new hires Section 3 workers. 
14 new hires Targeted Section 3 workers.

Project Notes

The project's Contractor Compliance Tracking
documents payroll concerns that require attention.

23% 
awarded to minority-
owned businesses

12% 
awarded to women-owned 
businesses

10% 
awarded to Section 3 
businesses

Labor Hours

74% 
Section 3 Workers

10% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

New Hires

72% 
Section 3 Workers

16% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I |  Executive Summary
April 1, 2024 | Page 3

 
 

23



PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
GENERAL CONTRACTOR
Frank L. Blum Construction Company, Sterling Construction Services, A Joint Venture 

Business Utilization Section 3 Workforce

0 new hires identified. 
0 new hires Section 3 workers. 
0 new hires Targeted Section 3 workers.

Project Notes

No payroll concerns to report.

2% 
awarded to minority-
owned businesses

0% 
awarded to women-owned 
businesses

2% 
awarded to Section 3 
businesses

Labor Hours

15% 
Section 3 Workers

1% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

New Hires

0% 
Section 3 Workers

0% 
Targeted Section 3 
Workers

Winston-Salem CNI Project, Phase I |  Executive Summary
April 1, 2024 | Page 4

 
 

24



M
O

N
T

H
L
Y

 R
E

P
O

R
T

C
L
E
V

E
L
A

N
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E
 H

O
M

E
S 

P
E
O

P
L
E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y

A
p

ri
l 
2
0
2
4

W
S 

C
h
o
ic

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d

 
 

25



T
A

B
L
E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E
N

T
S


R

e
p

o
r
t 

N
a
rr

a
ti

v
e


M

o
n
th

ly
 H

ig
h
lig

h
t 
–
 T

ra
n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
 i
s 

H
ap

p
e
n
in

g


D

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
s


T
ar

ge
t 

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n


R

ac
e
, e

th
n
ic

it
y,
 a

ge
, i

n
co

m
e
 e

tc
.


E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n


K

in
d
e
rg

ar
te

n
 R

e
ad

in
e
ss


Y
o
u
th

 E
n
ro

llm
e
n
t/

O
u
t 

o
f 
Sc

h
o
o
l 
P
ro

gr
am

 P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n


A

d
u
lt
 E

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 E

n
ro

llm
e
n
t 

&
 P

ar
ti
ci

p
at

io
n


H

e
a
lt

h


P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ar
e


H

e
al

th
 I
n
su

ra
n
ce


E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 M
o

b
il
it

y


Se

lf
-S

u
ff
ic

ie
n
cy


E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t


D

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 M

a
d

e


O

u
r 

T
e
a
m

 
 

26



T
h
e
 W

in
st

o
n
-S

al
e
m

 C
h
o
ic

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d
 I
n
it
ia

ti
ve

 (
i.e

., 
U

rb
an

 

St
ra

te
gi

e
s,
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

f W
in

st
o
n
-S

al
e
m

, C
it
y 

o
f W

in
st

o
n
-

Sa
le

m
, a

n
d
 M

cC
o
rm

ac
k
 B

ar
o
n
 S

al
az

ar
) 

P
h
as

e
 1

 a
t 

th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

 

B
ro

w
n
 E

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 S

ch
o
o
l 
si

te
 o

n
 H

ig
h
la

n
d
 A

ve
n
u
e
 i
s 

co
m

p
le

te
. 

B
R
O

W
N

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 

L
O

F
T

S 
@

 L
E
G

A
C

Y
 

H
E
IG

H
T

S

 
 

27



D
E
M

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
S

9
1
.9

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

  
  
 

A
fr

ic
an

-A
m

e
ri

ca
n
s.

6
4
.1

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 F
e
m

al
e
s.

4
1
.7

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 1
8
 –

 6
4
 

ye
ar

s 
o
f 
ag

e
.

9
9
.9

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

o
ri

gi
n
al

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 

e
n
ro

lle
d
 i
n
 c

as
e
 m

an
ag

e
m

e
n
t.

M
e

tr
ic

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
u

n
t

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 (

o
ri

g
in

a
l)

2
2

0

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 S

e
rv

e
d

 (
to

 d
a

te
) 

3
1

4

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
rv

e
d

 (
o

ri
g

in
a

l 
a

n
d

 

n
e

w
)

2
0

7

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
2

0
7

H
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 (

to
 d

a
te

)
1

0
6

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 n

o
t 

in
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 i
n

 C
a

s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

2
1

N
e

w
 T

a
rg

e
t 

H
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 p

o
s
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
/p

ri
o

r 
to

 r
e

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 

e
n

ro
lle

d
 i
n

 C
a

s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

1
1

4

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 T

A
N

F
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 i
n

 f
o

o
d

 s
ta

m
p

s
1

7
5

T
a

rg
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 i
n

 S
S

I 
o

r 
S

S
D

I
5

0

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 W

a
g

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 (
n

o
 S

S
I/

S
S

D
I)

$
2

3
,0

2
5

.0
0

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
H

o
u

rl
y
 W

a
g

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

$
1

3
.7

4

M
e

tr
ic

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

d
u

lt
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 (

1
8

-

6
4

 y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

a
g

e
) 

n
o

t 
a

b
le

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

r 
tr

a
in

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

3
1

1
3

.7
7

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
L

im
it
e

d
 E

n
g

lis
h

 

P
ro

fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 (

L
E

P
) 

ta
rg

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
0

0
.0

0
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
1

6
9

3
1

.7
6

%

 
 

28



E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

1
0
0
.0

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
t 

p
ar

e
n
ts

 r
e
ad

 

to
 y

o
u
th

 o
n
 a

 r
e
gu

la
r 

b
as

is
.

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
t 

yo
u
th

 a
re

 a
ge

s 

0
 –

 1
8
 y

e
ar

s 
o
f 
ag

e
.

8
7
.4

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

yo
u
th

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
sa

fe
 (

i.e
., 

sa
fe

, 
ve

ry
 s

af
e
, 
o
r 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 s
af

e
) 

o
n
 

th
e
 w

ay
 t

o
 s

ch
o
o
l 
an

d
 b

ac
k
.

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 s

o
m

e
 

h
ig

h
 s

ch
o
o
l/
G

E
D

 t
ra

in
in

g 
o
r 

a 

h
ig

h
 s

ch
o
o
l 
d
ip

lo
m

a/
G

E
D

.

6
5
.9

0
%

5
6
.3

0
%

M
e

tr
ic

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

fr
o

m
 b

ir
th

 t
o

 k
in

d
e

rg
a

rt
e

n
 e

n
tr

y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 

c
e

n
te

r-
b

a
s
e

d
 o

r 
fo

rm
a

l 
h

o
m

e
-b

a
s
e

d
 e

a
rl

y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 o

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s

1
5

/7
3

2
0

.5
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
y
o

u
th

 

s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
d

e
la

y
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
7

3
/7

3
1

0
0

.0
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
y
o

u
th

 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 y

o
u

th
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

(i
.e

.,
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s
)

6
1

/2
0

8
2

9
.3

0
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 h
ig

h
e

r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n

2
/1

8
8

1
.1

0
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l/
tr

a
d

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l/
jo

b
 t
ra

in
in

g

4
/1

8
8

2
.1

0
%

 
 

29



H
E
A

LT
H

9
5
.3

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

yo
u
th

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e
 

in
 a

t 
le

as
t 

6
0
 m

in
u
te

s 
o
f 
p
h
ys

ic
al

 

ac
ti
vi

ty
 d

ai
ly

 (
ag

e
s 

2
+

).

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 

M
e
d
ic

ai
d
 i
n
su

ra
n
ce

.

1
0
0
.0

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 s

e
e
n
 

th
e
ir

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
p
h
ys

ic
ia

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

la
st

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s.

T
ar

ge
t 

yo
u
th

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 

se
e
n
 t

h
e
ir

 d
e
n
ti
st

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
as

t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s.

7
7
.7

0
%

8
9
.6

4
%

M
e

tr
ic

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 p

la
c
e

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

c
a

re
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

y
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 g

o
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 r

o
o

m
, 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 s

ic
k
 o

r 
n

e
e

d
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

4
4

6
8

3
.8

3
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

4
5

4
8

5
.3

3
%

 
 

30



E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 M

O
B

IL
IT

Y

8
7
.4

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 

re
gi

st
e
re

d
 t

o
 v

o
te

.

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 

p
e
rm

an
e
n
tl
y 

e
m

p
lo

ye
d
.

9
7
.3

0
%

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir

 

jo
b
 i
s 

go
in

g 
w

e
ll.

T
ar

ge
t 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

ye
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 f
o
o
d
 i
n
d
u
st

ry
, 

h
e
al

th
ca

re
, 
o
r 

re
ta

il.

6
9
.4

0
%

8
4
.5

0
%

M
e

tr
ic

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 w
a

g
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

6
8

4
9

.3
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

o
rk

in
g

 f
u

ll-
ti
m

e

4
8

7
0

.6
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

rt
-t

im
e

2
0

2
9

.4
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
re

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d

7
0

5
0

.7
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

r 
lo

n
g

e
r

6
4

9
4

.1
0

%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 U

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

0
0

0
.0

0
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t

1
2

3
5

9
.4

0
%

 
 

31



 
 

32




E
va

 M
o
sb

y,
  

So
u
th

e
rn

 R
e
gi

o
n
 V

ic
e
-P

re
si

d
e
n
t


To

n
ya

 A
tk

in
s,
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r


T
re

sn
e
se

 B
ar

h
am

, P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
e
r


E
b
o
n
y 

M
o
o
re

, F
am

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
ci

al
is

t 
M

an
ag

e
r


Je

n
ay

 C
o
le

, F
am

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
ci

al
is

t 
II


R

h
o
n
d
a 

K
ill

ia
n
, M

o
b
ili

ty
 S

p
e
ci

al
is

t


Je

ss
ic

a 
M

ar
ti
n
e
z-

M
ar

ti
n
e
z,
 F

am
ily

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
ci

al
is

t 
II


Sh

e
n
n
e
tt

a 
R

o
b
in

so
n
, O

u
tr

e
ac

h
 W

o
rk

e
r


Sh

av
e
d
a 

Sh
aw

, F
am

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
ci

al
is

t 
II


N

ic
k
 W

ri
gh

t, 
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 S

p
e
ci

al
is

t

O
U

R
 T

E
A

M

 
 

33


	HAWS Development Committee Minutes MAY 2024
	DEV_May 2024
	Development Priority 1:  Crystal Towers
	Development Priority 1:  Crystal Towers
	Development Priority 1:  Crystal Towers
	Development Priority 2:  Happy Hill
	Development Priority 2:  Happy Hill
	Development Priority 2:  Happy Hill
	Development Priority 2:  Happy Hill
	OTHER DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS�(Exclusive of CNI)

	CNI_May 2024 CNI Report
	1. May 2024 Front Page
	2. May 2024 CNI Briefing
	3. Fiscal Report
	4. WSCNI, Phase I_ExecutiveSummary_Mar2024
	5. USI CAH CNI Summary - April 2024
	Slide 1: Cleveland avenue homes people strategy
	Slide 2: Table of contents
	Slide 3: Brown School lofts @ legacy heights
	Slide 4: demographics
	Slide 5: Education
	Slide 6: HEALTH
	Slide 7: Economic mobility
	Slide 8
	Slide 9: Our team





